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INTRODUCTION

Special Report of Investigation

Concerning Issues of Impropriety and Irregularity in the 2015 National Contracts

Commission’s Contractor Application Submitted by Seal Investments Co. 1.td.

The Office of the Contractor General (OCG), acting on behalf of the Contractor General and

pursuant to Sections 15(1) and 16 of the Contractor-General Act, initiated an Investigation into
the circumstances surrounding the July 29, 2015 application for re-registration made by Seal
Investments Co. Ltd. (trading as Seal Construction), to the National Contracts Commission

(NCQ).

Section 15 (1) of the Contractor-General Act provides the following:

“...a Contractor-General may, if he considers it

necessary or desirable, conduct an investigation into

any or all of the following matters -

(a) the registration of contractors,

(b) tender procedures relating to contracts awarded by
public bodies;

(c) the award of any government contract;

(d) the implementation of the terms of any government
contract,

(e) the circumstances of the grant, issue, use,
suspension or revocation of any prescribed licence;

(f) the practice and procedures relating to the grant,
issue, suspension or revocation of prescribed

licences.”
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Section 16 of the Act expressly provides that “An investigation pursuant to section 15 may be

undertaken by a Contractor-General on his own initiative or as a result of representations made

to him, if in his opinion such investigation is warranted.”

The OCG’s decision to commence an Investigation into the stated matter was prompted by the
receipt of a letter from the NCC under the signature of Mr. Raymond McIntyre, Chairman, NCC,
dated September 21, 2015. The referenced letter indicated that upon “...a review of the
application for registration as a Works Grades 1-4 Contractor submitted by Seal Investment
Company T/As Seal Construction revealed that two (2) of the members of staff represented on
the company’s application indicated during a staff verification exercise that they were no longer
working with the referenced company™. It was further indicated that the “...matter is referred to

the Office of the Contractor General for investigation™.

The OCG’s Investigation sought to determine, inter alia, whether Seal Investments Co. Ltd.
fraudulently represented and/or misrepresented information on its July 29, 2015 application for

re-registration with the NCC.

The foregoing objective formed the basis of the OCG’s Terms of Reference for its Investigation
which was primarily developed in accordance with the provisions which are contained in Section

4 (1) and Section 15(1) (a) to (d) of the Contractor-General Act.

The Findings of the OCG’s Investigation are premised primarily upon an analysis of the
responses and documentary evidence which were provided by the Respondents in hearings

convened by the OCG, during the course of its Investigation.

! Letter dated September 21, 2015, which was addressed to the OCG by Mr. Raymond McIntyre, Chairman, NCC.
2 .
Ibid.
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METHODOLOGY

In the course of its Investigation, the OCG conducted hearings with the following persons:

1. Mr. Robert Thomas, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd.;

Mr. Chescot Brownie, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd.;

Mr. Kenneth Livingston, Chief Financial Officer, Seal Investments Co. Ltd.;
Mr. Orville Kerr; and

A

Mr. Farrel Drummond, Employee, Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

The OCG also perused documentary evidence provided by Mr. Robert Thomas, Director, Seal

Investments Co. Ltd.

A detailed review of the responses and supporting documentation was undertaken.
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JURISDICTION

Detailed below is the legal basis upon which the Contractor General has enquired into the July
29, 2015 application for re-registration submitted by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. to the National
Contracts Commission (NCC). The OCG’s decision to undertake an Investigation into this
matter is predicated upon the representations, as it regards the staff complement, which were

made on the subject NCC application form.

The jurisdiction of the Contractor General enables the Office to enquire into the circumstances

surrounding the award of the registration of contractors in keeping with Sections 15 (1) and 16 of

the Contractor-General Act.

As mentioned previously, Section 15 (1) (a) of the Contractor-General Act provides as follows:

“...a Contractor-General may, if he considers it
necessary or desirable, conduct an investigation into
any or all of the following matters -

(a) the registration of contractors...”

In accordance with the above provision, the Contractor General may conduct an investigation
into matters which concern the registration of contractors. Consequently, the July 29, 2015
application for re-registration by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. to the NCC falls within the OCG’s

lawful purview.

* Section 15 (1) (a), Contractor-General Act.
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TERMS OF REFERENCE

The primary objectives of the OCG’s Investigation surround the alleged irregularities involved in
the July 29, 2015 application for re-registration submitted by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. to the

NCC are to determine, inter alia, the following:

1. Whether Seal Investments Co. Ltd. fraudulently represented and/or misrepresented

information on its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC;

2. Whether Seal Investments Co. Ltd. submitted misleading or false documentation to

the NCC in support of its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration; and

3. Whether the process utilized by the NCC in reviewing the July 29, 2015 application
for re-registration by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. was comprehensive, fair and

impartial.

The specific objectives of the Investigation are:

1. To determine the employment status of Mr. Orville Kerr at Seal Investments Co. Ltd.
as at July 29, 2015, the date on which the application was tendered;

2. To ascertain the employment status of Mr. Farrel Drummond at Seal Investments Co.

Ltd. as at July 29, 2015, the date on which the application was tendered; and

3. To determine the authenticity of the résumé of Mr. Farrel Drummond, which was
submitted by Seal Investments Co. Ltd., on its July 29, 2015 application for re-
registration with the NCC.
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FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Seal Investments Co. Ltd., trading as Seal Construction, is a construction company which

was incorporated on September 2, 1994.

2. The directors of Seal Investments Co. Ltd. as at December 31, 2002, are Mr. Robert

Thomas and Mr. Chescot Brownie.

3. On July 29, 2015, Seal Investments Co. Ltd. submitted an application to be re-registered

on the Register of Public Sector Works Contractors in the categories of:
a. Building Construction - Grade 1

b. Civil Engineering - Grade 1

c. General Road Works — Grade 4

d. Interior Construction Works — Grade 3

e. Mechanical Works — Grade 3

f. Pipe Laying — Grade 3

g. Road Maintenance Works — Grade 3

h. Road Surfacing — Asphaltic Concrete Works — Grade 2

1. Road Surfacing — Double Surface Dressing Works — Grade 2
J- Road Surfacing — Micro Surfacing Works - Grade 2

k. Roofing — Grade 4

1. Signage — Grade 4

m. Steel Erection — Grade 4
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n. System Building — Grade 2; and
0. Tank Erection — Grade 4

4. In its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration, Seal Investments Co. Ltd. listed Mr.

Farrel Drummond and Mr. Orville Kerr as members of its supervisory staff.

5. The pre-assessment process undertaken by the NCC for the registration and/or re-
registration of contractors involves a review of the application and the supporting
documents as well as verification telephone calls to individuals listed as members of

staff.

6. During the pre-assessment stage of the July 29, 2015 application for re-registration by
Seal Investments Co. Ltd., Mr. Farrel Drummond advised the NCC that he was not an

employee of Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

7. During a hearing, Mr. Farrel Drummond advised the OCG that he had informed the NCC
representative who had called, that he was not an employee at Seal Investments Co. Ltd.
as he believed that he was being targeted by a ‘scammer’. He later confirmed his

employment status to the OCG as that of a full time employee at Seal Investments Co.

Ltd.

8. Mr. Orville Kerr, during the pre-assessment stage of the July 29, 2015 application for re-
registration by Seal Investments Co. Ltd., advised the NCC that he has not been an

employee at Seal Investments Co. Ltd. ‘for 20 months to date’.

9. At a hearing which was convened on October 26, 2015, Mr. Orville Kerr indicated that
his employment status with Seal Investments Co. Ltd. was that of a part time employee;
an employee who is contracted on a needs basis. Mr. Kerr stated that at the time the
assessment was conducted by the NCC, he understood employment at Seal Investments
Co. Ltd. to mean employment on a full time basis. Contrastingly, on November 24, 2015,

Mr. Kerr stated, inter alia, that he was self-employed and also indicated that he had some
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

concerns with Seal Investments Co. Ltd. and he was apprehensive as it regards the
company becoming aware of his disclosure to the NCC that he “no longer work for

them”.

Based on the details of a cheque delivery book which spanned the period November 22,
2013 to September 25, 2015, thirty-eight (38) payments were made to Mr. Farrel
Drummond totalling $983,600.00.

Based on the details of the referenced cheque delivery book, two (2) payments were
made to Mr. Orville Kerr for the period November 22, 2013 and December 6, 2013 which
totaled $140,000.00.

Seal Investments Co. Ltd. was only able to provide two (2) cheques, dated November 22,
2013 and March 4, 2014, which were made payable to Mr. Orville Kerr, as a means of
establishing that Mr. Kerr was employed to the company.

There is no information which refers to details of cheque payments for both Mr. Farrel

Drummond and Mr. Orville Kerr for the period June 2015 to present”.

Mr. Chescot Brownie, by way of his Affidavit made pursuant to the Voluntary
Declarations Act, signed and caused to be submitted the July 29, 2015 application for re-
registration with the NCC.

* As at the date of the OCG’s enquiry.
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DISCUSSION OF FINDINGS

In accordance with the aforementioned Terms of Reference, the OCG sought to ascertain
whether Seal Investments Co. Ltd. fraudulently represented and/or misrepresented information
on its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration’ to the National Contracts Commission
(NCC). As such, the OCG sought to determine the process which was undertaken by the NCC

upon receipt of the referenced application.

The Verification Process

Subsequent to the receipt of an application for registration by a contractor, the Secretariat of the
NCC (Technical Services Division, OCG) conducts a verification process which involves a
review and assessment of the information represented on the application form to ensure that the
contractor is in full compliance with the requirements of the NCC. In a document entitled
“NATIONAL CONTRACTS COMMISSION (NCC) WORKS CONTRACTORS
REGISTRATION (GRADES 1-4) APPLICATION _REVISED REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENTS and PROCEDURES”, the following, inter alia, is indicated:

13

. The Pre-Assessment process also includes
the verification of all staff members
represented by the Contractor/Applicant on
the Application Form. The process involves
the placement of a call to the respective staff
member assigned to the Application via the
contact number on the staff members resume
toascertain  [sic] the staff member’s
affiliation with the Contractor/Applicant and
the staff members experience in the category

applied for ...

> The OCG attaches, herewith, a copy of the subject application as ‘Appendix 1°.
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. The Pre-Assessment Officer is required to
prepare a File Note of the staff verification
process, complete and sign a Pre-

Assessment Checklist.

. Upon completion of the Pre-Assessment
Process, the Pre-Assessment Olfficer is
required to submit the file to the TSD Works
Manager, who conducts a review of the Pre-

Assessment Report/File Note...”

On its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration, Seal Investments Co. Ltd. listed Mr. Farrel
Drummond and Mr. Orville Kerr as members of its Supervisory Staff. Based on the established
registration procedures of the NCC, it would then become necessary for the NCC to verify the
information provided by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. which would entail placing a telephone call
to the noted support staff to determine their affiliation with the company as well as their

experience in the category of works which was outlined in the subject application.

Mr. Farrel Drummond

As part of the pre-assessment stage, the Technical Services Division sought to verify the
employment status of Mr. Farrel Drummond with Seal Investments Co. Ltd and, thereafter,
completed a pre-assessment checklist and review. In a document entitled “Review of National
Contracts Commission (NCC) Works 1-4 Contractor Application”’, which was prepared by the

Technical Services Division and dated September 2, 2015, indicated inter alia, as follows:

®Document entitled “NATIONAL CONTRACTS COMMISSION (NCC) WORKS CONTRACTORS
REGISTRATION (GRADES 1-4) APPLICATION REVISED REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS AND
PROCEDURES”. Page 16.
” This document was prepared by the Technical Services Division upon a review of the July 29, 2015 application for
re-registration which was submitted to the NCC by Seal Investments Co. Ltd.
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“...0n August 10, 2015 at 3:08 p.m. Mr. Farrel
Drummond who was represented as a Supervisory
Staff on the Application was contacted via
telephone. When asked if he was currently working
with Seal Investments Company Limited T/As Seal

Construction, he stated that he is not working there

as he is old and he goes there on occasions

because his friends are there. Mr. Drummond said

the last time he worked with the company was

some time last year.”* (OCG Emphasis)

The OCG, in furtherance of its Investigation, convened a hearing with Mr. Farrel Drummond on
October 16, 2015, and sought to determine (i) his employment status at Seal Investments Co.
Ltd. and (ii) whether he was aware that Seal Investments Co. Ltd. had listed him as a member of
its supervisory staff on its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC. The

following, inter alia, was disclosed:

“CHAIRMAN: Now sir, Mr Drummond, you
know Seal Investment

Company Limited? You know

that company?
A: Yes.
CHAIRMAN: You have worked with that

company for some time, sir?

® Document entitled “Review of National Contracts Commission (NCC) Contractor Registration”, prepared by
the Technical Services Department, and dated August 7, 2015. Page 6.
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A: Yes, me used to work fe them
private before them in that
business?

CHAIRMAN: Before them do construction
business you used to work
with them?

A: Before them have the Seal
Construction. Me used to
work for them before they
registered Seal.

CHAIRMAN: What name they used to go by
then?

A: No name, private.

CHAIRMAN: Since they doing
construction work _how long
you working with them?

A: From 1994.

CHAIRMAN: You are currently working
with them?

A: Yes, only one time _me_stop
when me get the strokes.

CHAIRMAN: And when you got the
strokes?

National Contracts Commission Office of the Contractor General January 2017
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A:

2011 (OCG Emphasis)

It is important to note that based on the foregoing, Mr. Farrel Drummond advised the OCG that

he is currently employed to Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

At the referenced hearing the OCG also sought to ascertain the details, if any, of the telephone

conversation held between Mr. Drummond and the Secretariat of the NCC. This conversation

involved verifying Mr. Drummond’s employment status at Seal Investments Co. Ltd. and the

authenticity of his qualifications and other information that were submitted by the company on

their July 29, 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC. Mr. Drummond advised the

OCG accordingly:

“CHAIRMAN:

A:
CHAIRMAN:

A:

CHAIRMAN:

A:

CHAIRMAN:

® Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 16, 2015 involving Mr. Farrel Drummond. Pages 3-4.

Now, what type of work you

do for Seal Construction, sir?
Supervisor.
Supervise what?

Like  carpentry, masonry,

plumber, electrician.

And you have worked with

them in fact all of this year

basically; you have worked

all of this vear so far with

them?
Yes.

And this is on a fortnightly

basis?
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A:

CHAIRMAN: ..And you are paid by
cheque or you are paid by
cash?

A: Sometimes  cheque
sometimes cash.

CHAIRMAN: Now sir, on the 1 0" of
August of this year at about
3:08 p.m., you
contacted by someone from
the National Contracts
Commission?

A: Me don’t know is who did
call me.

CHAIRMAN: Somebody call you, though?

A: Yes.

CHAIRMAN: And you were asked if you
were currently working with
Seal Investment Company
Limited trading as
Construction? Were
asked that question, sir?

A: Yes, and me say yes.

National Contracts Commission
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CHAIRMAN: And the person who called

vou has made a record that

vou said that you are not

working there as you are old

and you go there on

occasions  because  your

friends are there. Did you

say that to the person?

When the person called you
and the person asked you if
you are currently working
with Seal Investment

Company Limited you said:

“I am not working there as 1
am old and I go there on
occasions because I have

friends there.”

A: Yes, sir.
CHAIRMAN: Yes, you said that?
A: Yes, but can I say something
more?
CHAIRMAN: Yes man, you are going to be
allowed.
National Contracts Commission Office of the Contractor General January 2017

Page 16 of 103



CHAIRMAN:

CHAIRMAN:

Yes, because I never know

who was talking and people

going round and scamming

people so I don’t even know

who, so I just answer just

like that.

The person who called, did
the person identify where

they were calling from?

No.

I never even hear what the
person said me just answer
like that as me hear the

Seal...

...The person who called

you, did the person identify

themself, sir, to you?

I didn’t remember if they
identified themself to me...

Quite a few persons were

there because the somebody

talking, me say me can

hardly hear you.
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CHAIRMAN:

CHAIRMAN:

A:

CHAIRMAN:

CHAIRMAN:

A:

Why you believe it was a

scammer?

Because it happen all the
while. Dem scam all my

brother like that.

Why you believe it was a
scammer? Has anybody ever
called your brother and
asked about Seal Investment

or Seal Construction?
Me caan recall that.

You can’t recall this thing
that you tell me ‘bout your
brother? What 1is it that
happened to your brother

that you liken to this?

Because somebody used to

call me.
Call you or your brother?

Me, and ask when me work
and me say me naw answer

dem, me just heng up the
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phone? Longer time, from

last year.

CHAIRMAN: So you were concerned

about scammers and people

calling you?

A: Exactly. "'’ (OCG Emphasis)

It is the OCG’s finding that Mr. Drummond recalled a telephone conversation in which he was
asked about his employment status at Seal Investments Co. Ltd. However, he does not recall
whether the caller identified him/herself as acting on behalf of the NCC. In fact, Mr. Drummond
advised the OCG that he could hardly hear the questions which were being asked and that he was

of the opinion the caller was a ‘scammer’.

Mr. Farrel Drummond, in the hearing convened by the OCG on October 16, 2015, further
advised the Office that he was not aware that his name and accompanying information were
submitted by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. on its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration with
the NCC. The following, inter alia, was disclosed:

“CHAIRMAN: Were yvou aware that your

name had been submitted

with an application of Seal

Construction advising that

you work with seal

Construction?

A: Repeat again, sir.

' Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 16, 2015 involving Mr. Farrel Drummond. Pages 5-11.
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CHAIRMAN: You know say them send

your name come__up a

Kingston come a office?

. .l
A. No, sir.

The OCG observes that this disclosure by Mr. Drummond is in contrast with the position held by
Mr. Robert Thomas, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd. In a document entitled “Review of
National Contracts Commission (NCC) Works 1-4 Contractor Application” and dated
September 2, 2015, the NCC indicated, inter alia, as follows:

“...Mr. Thomas was also advised to ensure that all

staff represented on the Application Form were

aware that they were and he stated all staff were so

5 12
aware .

It is being reiterated that Mr. Robert Thomas informed the NCC that all members of staff of the

company who were listed as such on its 2015 application for re-registration, “were so aware”.

Interestingly, Mr. Farrel Drummond admitted to the OCG that he was not aware of his name
being submitted on a previous 2012 application for re-registration by Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

to the NCC. In a hearing held by the OCG on October 16, 2015, he stated, inter alia:

“CHAIRMAN: I will also just share with you
that  Seal  Construction
submitted your name in 2012
as part of their application
and indicated that you

worked  with  them  as

" Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 16, 2015 involving Mr. Farrel Drummond. Page 13.
2 Document entitled “Review of National Contracts Commission (NCC) Works 1-4 Contractor Application”,
prepared by the Technical Services Department, and dated September 2, 2015. Page 3.
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A:

supervisory staff. Just as they
have done again for this
application, they did it in
2012 also, sir, and you were
also called then, sir. Are you

aware of that?

. 513
No, sir.”

In furtherance of its Investigation, the OCG sought to discern the authenticity of the

qualifications of Mr. Farrel Drummond which were presented to the NCC by Seal Investments

Co. Ltd. on its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration.

The OCG notes that in the referenced application, Mr. Drummond is listed as a member of the

supervisory staff of Seal Investments Co. Ltd. who is “Qualified by Experience”.

Accompanying this application is a copy of a document entitled “RESUME 2012 which lists

the work experience of Mr. Farrel Drummond. In a hearing convened on October 16, 2015, the

OCQG, in an effort to ascertain the details of Mr. Drummond’s qualifications, proffered the

following questions:

“CHAIRMAN:

CHAIRMAN:

" Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 16, 2015 involving Mr. Farrel Drummond. Page 15.

...you don’t go no school

and get no paper?

No, never go to school for

that, sir.

What I am saying you learn
because even on the form
what dem write your name
dem say  ‘qualified by

experience’. So I am asking
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you if is out a road for 46
years you learn your trade?
You don’t go school and get
no piece of paper to learn
how to build road or
electrical work?

A: No, no paper...

CHAIRMAN: I am going to show you a

document submitted with the

application by Seal

construction. Even more

interesting, before I go there

you don’t have no resumé?

You know what resumée

mean?
A: No, sir.”
CHAIRMAN: Now sir, at any time you ever

get nobody to write up no

paper fe vou to list all the

place you used to work and

all the places you used to

work before?

A: No, sir, I don’t recall doing

anything like that...
CHAIRMAN: Now, sir, I am going to show

you a copy of a document

which was submitted, Mr
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A: (No answer)

CHAIRMAN: Sir, _did _you make _that
document?

A: No, sir, I can’t recall that.

CHAIRMAN: You can’t recall or you
never do it?

A: No, sir, me never do it. Mek
me see it.

CHAIRMAN: The top of it says, Resumé. It

Drummond, along

application by

Construction. I am

going to hand it to you. You

can have a look at it. It’s the

document at the top, not the

ones underneath,

one _on_ top. I am

showing it to you. You can

have a look at it.

(Document shown

witness)

Have you ever seen that

piece of paper before, sir?

means that is all the place

them you work, all the job

them you do. Did you make

that document, sir?

National Contracts Commission
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. )114
A: No, sir, me can’t recall.

(OCG Emphasis)

The OCG attaches herewith a copy of the subject resume which was shown to Mr. Drummond.

Mr. Drummond further disclosed to the OCG as follows:

“CHAIRMAN: Mr Drummond, have you

ever worked any place and

submit a piece of paper to

anybody indicating all the

places yvou worked before

you go for that job?

A: I can’t remember because

me write give them one time

and me don’t even

remember.
CHAIRMAN: You write something when,
from 1994?
A: Could even before too.
CHAIRMAN: ...For_any time for any of

the places you have worked,

have you ever written up a

document telling them where

you work, who you work

with, you work experience?

You ever tell people where

you work and give them — —

* Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 16, 2015 involving Mr. Farrel Drummond. Page 17-23.
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this is the reason why I must

get this job, see piece of

paper here showing all the

places 1 work, the people

dem I work for? Have you

ever done anything like that,

sir?

A: Me write something give

somebody already. Me can

[sic] remember who because

is long time. Me done it but

me can’t remember.

CHAIRMAN: You have done what?

A: Write something give
somebody.

CHAIRMAN: ...When_is the last time you

write it and how often you

write it because I tell you

about 2012, 2013, 2015, so

when is it then?

A: Me nuh member either.
CHAIRMAN: What'’s your answer sir?

A: Don’t know.

CHAIRMAN: In terms of the thing they

call resumé, it has on it

Sterling Manor Town
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Homes, houses — contract

sum $140,1996 [sic].

Construction of reinforced

concrete frame buildings;

reinforced concrete

foundations, block walls,

clay tile roof, electrical,

plumbing,  sewerage, to

include bio-digestant tile

field; pave parking, storm

water drains, et cetera.

You told somebody that?

A: Yes, sir.
CHAIRMAN: You tell them and them write

it on a piece of paper?

A: Exactly.

CHAIRMAN: When was that?

A: Sometime since year, you
know.

CHAIRMAN: This was 2012 I just read to

you; this one says 2012 sir.

So how vyou tell them this

year and it say 20122...

A: No. I don’t remember...""

As noted above, Mr. Drummond instructed the OCG that he now recalls telling someone about

his qualifications and having them draft a résumé in that regard. Interestingly, when questioned

' Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 16, 2015 involving Mr. Farrel Drummond. Pages 23-26.
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on the details of one of the projects listed on the résumé, Mr. Drummond admitted to

completing that project in 2015 when in fact it was stated to have been completed in 2012.

In furtherance of its Investigation, the OCG sought to ascertain the veracity of the statements

made by Mr. Drummond in relation to his employment status with Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

During the course of a hearing convened by the OCG on October 2, 2015 with Mr. Robert

Thomas, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd., the following, inter alia, was disclosed:

“MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ROBERT THOMAS:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ROBERT THOMAS:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ROBERT THOMAS:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

.M. Farrell
Drummond. You are
aware of Mr.

Drummond, sir.

Yes, sir.

....Now, when last did

Mr. Drummond work

with the company?

Mr. Drummond

worked  with the

company sir,

presently, today as we

speak.

Interesting.

Today, as we speak.

What location is he at

now?
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MR. ROBERT THOMAS:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

He is presently

supervising some

little  cleaning up

stuff going on up by

The Rivera, as we

speak. Mr. Farrell

Drummond, paid up

to last week Friday,

as we speak.

Mr. Farrell
Drummond, he s
listed  under  the
category as
supervisory staff on
the application form
on Page 9 of the
application there. Mr.
Drummond indicates
that he is not working
there. The call was
placed to him on
August 10", 2015, at
3:08 p.m. he said he
is not working,
currently working

with Seals Investment
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Company Limited. He
States that he is not
working there as he is
old. He goes there on
occasions because he
has friends there. He
said the last time he
worked — with  the
company was
sometime last year.
MR. ROBERT THOMAS: Sir, no, I paid him up
the [sic] last week

Friday.

Mr. Drummond is

basically full-time

and get paid every
fortnight, from 1994

until now.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: So, from 1994 Mr.
Drummond is paid
every two  weeks,
fortnightly?

MR. ROBERT THOMAS: Yeah, mr. Drummond
did Counter Points,
he  did  Sterling

Manor, I can name
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the projects, he did
Sinclairs. Mr.

Drummond is one of

the senior workers

from inception. So, 1

don’t know if him get

the call and true him

know the name OCG

him gett [sic]
16

scared.

(OCG Emphasis)

Based on the representations made by Mr. Thomas, Mr. Farrel Drummond is at present, a full-

time employee at Seal Investments Co. Ltd. and has been employed to the company since 1994.

Mr. Thomas also advised the OCG that he did not complete the information in the July 29, 2015

application form which was submitted to the NCC by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. He stated, inter

alia, the following:

“MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ROBERT THOMAS:

' Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 2, 2015 involving Mr. Robert Thomas. Pages 30-34.

Now, the information
that was contained in
the application form,

who filled it out, sir?

Well, it was filled out
by the CFO and I

‘assist’.
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MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ROBERT THOMAS:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ROBERT THOMAS:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

The information that
was contained

therein, did you check

for its  accuracy
before signing?
Most of it.

What part did you
check for?

I basically checked
over the jobs, works
that ‘has’ done and as
far as the equipment,
the botching plant, the
concrete botching
plant, the asphalt

botching plant.

What about staffing?
In terms of the
staffing  that  was
being represented on
your application, is
this something you
confirm, the persons
actually work within

the organization?
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MR. ROBERT THOMAS: Yeah, for the most
parts, the ones that |
looked.  We  have
various sites, 1 don’t
know now staff on an
individual basis
because we operate
all over Jamaica and
we  have  project

managers.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: I mean specifically in
terms of the
application submitted
as to whether
permanent  staff or
part-time  staff, that
information is
something you
checked that prior to
signing the
application
form?...The persons’

names _ that  were

submitted as staff,

these persons were,

in fact, working with

you at the time the
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names

were

submitted,

MR. ROBERT THOMAS: Yes, sir, to the best of

my knowledge.

nl7

Based on the foregoing disclosure by Mr. Thomas, it is being highlighted that Mr. Kenneth

Livingston, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Seal Investments Co. Ltd., was the person tasked

with completing the July 29, 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC. Also, Mr. Robert

Thomas indicated that at the time the names of the members of staff were submitted in the

referenced application form, they were, to the best of his knowledge, employed to Seal

Investments Co. Ltd.

On October 2, 2015, the OCG convened a hearing with Mr. Kenneth Livingston, CFO, Seal

Investments Co. Ltd. The following, inter alia, was disclosed:

“MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON:

Y Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 2, 2015 involving Mr. Robert Thomas. Pages 4-6.

M.
Livingston,

you were

instrumental

in_filling out,
completing
this _form, the

re-

registration?

I was not

instrumental,
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because Il

didn’t fill out
the form.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: So, you had
nothing to do
with it at all?

MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON: No, [ didn’t
say I don’t
have anything
to do with it, 1
had input, but
I was not the

one...

MR. DIRK HARRISON: What input, if
any, did you

have?

MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON: Most _of the

financial
information
that they used.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: Okay, now, in
respect of the

persons who

are there like
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MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

the staffing or
any other

aspect, _were
you, M.

Livingston,
involved in
the
verification_of

an of the

information

there?

Some of them.

And in terms

of the
staffing, the
supervisory

staffing, were

you _involved

in__contacting
anybody to
say, let me put
it __in__ strict
term_as_it_is
said _in__the

construction

industry, “A

gah submit a

National Contracts Commission

Office of the Contractor General

Page 35 of 103

January 2017



MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON:

CHAIRMAN:

application_to
NCC yuh
nuh, a gwaan

put yuh name

on the
application, it
awright, _mi
can__use yuh

name?

One person.

That __person
was _always on
the listing, but

his  resume
that _we had
was old _and
the document
says I need
updated

resume __for

everybody _so,
I had to call

him.

Who was that

person?
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MR. ROBERT THOMAS [sic]:

MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON:

Mr. Alder, the

electrician.

A was

advised by the
officer that all

the resumes

had to be
updated, 5o,

when I was
going through
1 didn’t see
one for him at

all.

...when  you
look at Farrell
Drummond

and Mr.
Orville Clarke
[sic], theirs

are 2012?

Yes, remember
I said I didn’t
put  together

the document
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MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON:

To your
personal

knowledge,
who is it that

dealt with the
verification

for the other

staf[mg

members ___as
one__prepared
to resubmit
the

document?

I think it was

Patrick.

Patrick,

Patrick who?

Patrick Blake.

Patrick Blake,
and who is he,

sir?

He is a
subcontractor,

but he helped
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MR. DIRK HARRISON:

in putting it
together,
because 1

didn’t have the

time.

The role that
Mr.  Patrick
Blake
performed,
seeing that
you do not
have the time,
that you
mentioned
earlier, I am
asking
whether or not
it was his job,
in the absence
of your
availability, to
contact
persons  who
were listed as

being staff

members to
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determine
whether or not
the
information
was correct
and could be

utilized?

MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON: 1 did not give
him a terms of
reference, so, 1
don’t know the
process he

used.

OCG OFFICER: Mr.
Livingston,

you stated

that the office,

and I am

assuming you
mean the
NCC, told you
that __updated
resumes _were
required __ for
everyone.
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MR. KENNETH LIVINGSTON: Yes, I actually
called in and

asked. What

happened, _is
that I was
using a_form

and_then_they
told me the

form is old

and _that, so 1
asked what
was the

process __and

they said 1
have to have
updated

resume __for
everybody.”"®

The OCG accepts that Mr. Kenneth Livingston, CFO, Seal Investments Co. Ltd., admitted to the
OCG that he was not the person who completed the majority of the information on the
company’s July 29, 2015 application for re-registration. We further accept that he provided most
of the financial information outlined therein and was aware that updated résumés were required
for members of staff who were represented on an application to the NCC. It is also accepted that
it was ‘Patrick Blake’ who “dealt with the verification for the other staffing members” on the

company’s July 29, 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC.

' Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 2, 2015 involving Mr Kenneth Livingston. Pages 48-57.
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At this juncture, the OCG notes the following, inter alia, which is outlined in the document
entitled “NATIONAL CONTRACTS COMMISSION DETAILED REQUIREMENTS FOR
REGISTRATION FOR PUBLIC SECTOR WORKS CONTRACTORS REGISTRATION

(GRADES 1-4), and which applies to the re-registration of applicants which were registered

with the NCC after September 1, 2010:

“NO.

LIST OF ITEMS

DESCRIPTION

REQUIREMENTS

10.

Supervisory Staff
e Individuals  with
considerable
experience in the
construction
industry with
responsibility  for
on-site day-to-day
activities.
Individuals  may
also be
professionally and
technically

trained.

AND

o At the time of

Refer to Page 9 of the
Register of Public
Sector Works
Contractors  Grades
1-4 Application Form
and the Appendix to
Contractor

Application Form

1. Updated Resumes

" ust include
given  name,
contact
information,
education
attained, work
experience
including

dates, names

of places
worked, a
brief

description of
the work
duties, name

and nature of

Application, major projects
individuals ~ who done.
have a formal
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working NB.

relationship  with *Where  the  staff
the Contractor complement us the
and/or  Company same as that of the
in a capacity such previous NCC
as Consultants, registration, the
Full-time or Part- Contractor will not be
time staff.” required to resubmit

the  original  and
photocopy of their
academic
/professional
certification.

However, updated

Resumes must be

submitted for all

members of staff.

Mr. Orville Kerr

In its July 29, 2015 NCC application for re-registration with the NCC, Seal Investments Co. Ltd.
listed Mr. Orville Kerr as a member of its supervisory staff who has been ‘with the firm’ for
twelve (12) years. Of note, in describing individuals who fall within the scope of supervisory

staff, the application form stated as follows:

“Supervisory Staff includes:
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o Individuals with appropriate experience in the
construction industry with responsibility for on-site
day-to-day activities.

o At the time of Application, individuals who have a
formal working relationship with the Contractor
and/or Company in a capacity such as Consultants,
Full-time or Part-time staff. Individuals may also be

professionally and technically trained.”"’

In keeping with the established provisions outlined in the document entitled “NATIONAL
CONTRACTS COMMISSION (NCC) WORKS CONTRACTORS REGISTRATION
(GRADES 1-4) APPLICATION REVISED REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS AND

PROCEDURES?”, as part of its pre-assessment stage, the Technical Services Division sought to

verify the employment status of Mr. Orville Kerr with Seal Investments Co. Ltd. and thereafter
completed a pre-assessment checklist and review. In a document entitled “Review of National
Contracts Commission (NCC) Contractor Registration”, which is a review of the 2015
application for re-registration by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. prepared by the Technical Services

Division, it was indicated, inter alia, as follows:
“Orville Kerr...

On August 13, 2015 at 3:29 p.m. Mr. Orville Kerr
was contacted via telephone. He was asked of his
current affiliation with Seal Investments Co. Ltd-

T/as Seal Construction. He stated that he no longer

works with the company. I asked him when did he

stop working with the company and he said for a

good while now. I asked Mr. Kerr to give a more

% “NATIONAL CONTRACTS COMMISSION REGISTER OF PUBLIC SECTOR WORKS CONTRACTORS GRADES 1-
4 APPLICATION FORM?” submitted to the NCC by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. on July 29, 2015. Page 9.
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precise response and he stated that he stopped
)

working with the company for over a year.

(OCG Emphasis)

Below is a further extract of the account which was provided by the NCC and which was
captured in the document entitled “Review of National Contracts Commission (NCC) Works 1-

4 Contractor Application” dated September 2, 2015. The following, inter alia, was stated:

“...I asked Mr. Kerr how long since he had stopped
working with Seal Construction and he stated that
he has not been working with the company for 20

months to date.

Mr. Kerr was asked if he had any intentions of

working with them in the future and he said not to

his knowledge. He was then asked who were the

persons he would speak to regarding projects/ work
and he said both the Directors Mr. Brownie and

Mr. Thomas. He was then asked when was the last

time he spoke to them regarding any projects and

he stated 20 months ago. I asked him again, should

the company require him to work with them would
he do so and he said he is too old right now and he

can’t bother with the stress.

Mpr. Kerr was asked whether he was aware of any

projects that the company is currently undertaking

and he said not to his knowledge and he is not

* Document entitled “Review of National Contracts Commission (NCC) Contractor Registration”, prepared by
the Technical Services Department, and dated August 7, 2015. Page 6.
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interested. He was also asked if he had any

disputes with them and he said not to his

knowledge. »21

At a hearing held on October 2, 2015, the OCG put the abovementioned assertions to Mr. Robert

Thomas, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd. The following, inter alia, was revealed:

“MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ROBERT THOMAS:

Sir, in respect,

specifically _of Mr.

Ovrville Kerr, at the
29" of July, 2015, the
date of the

submission of vyour

NCC application for

re-registration, was

Mr. Owville Kerr

employed to your

company?

...Yes, Gary, I call

him__Gary, so just

excuse me if I address
him as Gary. 1 will
just deal with him as

better known... What

! Document entitled “Review of National Contracts Commission (NCC) Contractor Registration”, prepared by
the Technical Services Department, and dated September 2, 2015. Page 3.
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Gary does is

temporary _for now,

he will come into,

like the  Riviera

Project or any other

project on call and

work. Gary is

supposed __to _ start

working specifically

on a project in Green

Pond starting this

month, so [ would

say, yes.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: But _at_July 29"
2015, when you
submitted the

application, he was

not engaged?

MR. ROBERT THOMAS: Yeah, we engaged

Gary.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: Okay. So, at the 29"
of July, 2015, he was
being paid by you?

MR. ROBERT THOMAS: He was paid on a on-
call basis at that
point. The full-time
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job for 15 months
wouldn’t be starting

until this month.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: Mpr. Ovrville Kerr was

contacted, sir, on the

13" of August, 2015,

and he says he no

longer works with the

company, “I stopped

working  with _ the

company a good

while now.” He was

asked to give a

precise response and

he said he stopped

working  with the

company for over a

year?

MR. ROBERT THOMAS: ...Mr. Kerr, for the

better part of it, since

that time 1 don’t

know if Gary

misunderstood the

question that was
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MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ROBERT THOMAS:

asked of him at that

particular time, but

Gary was the last

person_at the Rivera

project as full-time in

the capacity as

SUpervisor. ..

The construction part

of it, the building

part of it ended last

yvear about, was it

July - - I think
October.
...but between

October and when

his engagement is to

start now this month,

has he worked with

you?

Yes, Mr. Kerr does
things for us.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: He has worked?
MR. ROBERT THOMAS: Yeah.
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MR. DIRK HARRISON: ...at that time, the
29" of July, 2015,

then, he wasn’t on

staff, unless you had

a project?

MR. ROBERT THOMAS: He wasn’t full-time,
full-time
employed. »22

(OCG Emphasis)

The OCG reiterates for emphasis that Mr. Robert Thomas, in his statement to the OCG, advised
that Mr. Orville Kerr might have misunderstood what was asked of him by the NCC when the
Commission called to ascertain his employment status at Seal Investments Co. Ltd. He also
stated that Mr. Kerr was employed on a full-time basis on the Rivera project which he recalled
ended in October 2014. Mr. Thomas later mentioned that during the period of October 2014 and
the date of the mentioned hearing, Mr. Kerr had “done things for” the company on an “on-call
basis”. However, we find that at the time of the July 29, 2015 application for re-registration, Mr.

Kerr was not employed on a full-time basis nor a part-time basis as a supervisor by Seal

Investments Co. Ltd.

Having regard to the substance of the allegations which formed the basis of the OCG’s
Investigation, a hearing was convened with Mr. Kerr on October 26, 2015, wherein the Office
sought to determine his employment status with Seal Investments Co. Ltd. as well as whether he
was aware that the company had listed him as a member of its supervisory staff in its July 29,

2015 application for re-registration with the NCC. The following, inter alia, was disclosed:

“MR. DIRK HARRISON: Are you aware of the

company Seal

?2 Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 2, 2015 involving Mr. Robert Thomas. Pages 7-29.
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Investment Company

Limited?

MR. ORVILLE KERR: Yes, sir.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: Have you done work

with them sir,
before?
MR. ORVILLE KERR: I have worked with

them from 2000 up
until 2013 on a full-

time basis, but since

2013, there were

times  when _ they

would call you to ask

you to _carry out some

duties maybe for a

day or so.

MR. DIRK HARRISON: Now, from 2013 to

the present date, at

any time that you

have worked with

Seal Construction,

it’s on  part-time

basis.

MR. ORVILLE KERR: It is a part-time...l

would say part-time,

like they would call
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MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ORVILLE KERR:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

you in and say, we
don’t have anyone to
do the pay bills, so

can you do it.

...50, you do pay bills
for them sometimes

too?

Yes, and there were
times they will send
me out on different
missions, like,
sometimes to do some
work on some doors

or something like that.

...For the time that
you were full-time
with Seal
Construction, you
received a cheque
from them and you
also received certain
benefits, and when [
say benefits, I refer to
things like you pay
NIS, probably health,
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MR. ORVILLE KERR:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR, ORVILLE KERR:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ORVILLE KERR:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ORVILLE KERR:

you understand what |

am saying?
Yes, sir.

You had such an
engagement with them
when you were on

full-time basis?

On a  full-time,
working I get the
cheque (inaudible)
every month or every

fortnight.

And the occasion that
you call it part-time,
did you have the same

benefits?

No, sir. Like you
finish working today
and you would get the

money same time.

Whereas on a full-
time basis you are
paid what, monthly or
fortnightly?

Fortnightly.
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MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ORVILLE KERR:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ORVILLE KERR:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

I asked whether or

not_you__are__aware,

Mr. Kerr, that your

name was submitted

as __part __of the

application by Seal

Construction on the

29" of July, 20152

No, sir.

You are aware, of

course, that  the

National  Contracts

Committee [sic], a

representative  from

the National

Contracts Committee

[sic] contacted you

with a view to verify

that you worked with

Seal Construction?

Yes, sir.

The  person  who
called you identified

themselves to you?
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MR. ORVILLE KERR:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ORVILLE KERR:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

Yes, sir, but I don’t

remember the name.

...The representative

from the National

Contracts
Commission

indicates that after

putting a question to

you, you answered_as

follows — — you were

asked to state your

current affiliation

with Seal
Investments
Company  Limited,

trading as Seals [sic]

Constructions, can

you recall being

asked that question?

I don’t remember

that question.

...the person from the

National  Contracts

Commission said that
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MR. ORVILLE KERR:

vou said that you no

longer worked with

the company? You

recall saying that?

Yes, I said that

because what I think,

is, I don’t longer

work for the

company _because 1

no longer have a 9:00

to 5:00 job everyday

with this company

they would only call

me — — for the past

say, 18 months, they

have called me

maybe five times, you

understand, and so

that is what I said, 1

no longer work for

this  company. 1

thought working for

this company would

be to get up and

going to work like

how I did for that 13

years g0 to this

company.
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MR. DIRK HARRISON:

MR. ORVILLE KERR:

The officer from the
NCC said that you

were asked to

indicate  when you

had stopped working

with the company

and your answer was,

“A good while now,”

can_you recall that

being asked and you

answering as such?

I think I had

answered that

question that it was

in December 2013, if

I remember it

correctly.

223

(OCG Emphasis)

Mr. Kerr stated that, in his opinion, (i) he was employed to Seal Investments Co. Ltd. on a full-
time basis up to 2013; (i1) he is currently employed to the company on a part-time basis; (iii) that
when the NCC enquired of his employment status at the company he understood this to mean he
was employed on a full-time basis; and (iv) he was not aware that Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

submitted his name as a member of staff in its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration with

% Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 26, 2015 involving Mr. Orville Kerr. Pages 4-10.
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The OCG reiterates that Mr. Robert Thomas informed the NCC that all members of staff of the

company who were listed as such on its 2015 application for re-registration, “were so aware”.

The Tests of Employee Status

Notwithstanding the representations made by Mr. Orville Kerr, the OCG’s research indicates that

Mr. Kerr’s employment status would be reflective of an independent contractor.
Mutual Obligation

A common law test is usually applied in determining the employment status of persons. It is a
general prerequisite for a mutuality of obligation to exist in a contract of employment. This
obligation is required by both employer and employee— an obligation on the employer to

provide work and on the employee to execute same.**

This point was further established in the case of Clark v Oxfordshire Health Authority™. In the
referenced case, the applicant worked under a global contract of employment with the respondent
but was only offered work as it became available. There was no obligation on either the applicant
or the respondent to provide work or to work. Notwithstanding that, the applicant worked for
three years with gaps totalling four and a half months. The Court of Appeal held that the
applicant was not an employee because there was no mutuality of obligation since she could

refuse work as she desired.

Further, in Carmichael v National Power plc% , it was held that work on a ‘casual as required’

basis was not sufficient to give rise to a mutually binding obligation. Additionally, it was held

** Nethermere (St Neots) Ltd v Taverna and Gardiner [1984] IRLR 240
[1998] IRLR 125
?*[2000] IRLR 43
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““

that consideration should be given “...not only to documents recording the relationship but also

the way in which the relationship had worked in practice...””’

Factors Indicating Employment Status

While the test of mutual obligation appears to be generally applied, there are other factors which

indicate one’s employment status. For example, it can be suggested that a person is considered

an independent contractor if he is engaged on a casual or short term basis, especially where

he retains the right to be employed elsewhere”®.

In the case of Hall v Lorimer”® , the respondent, a vision mixer, worked for a number of
production companies and the majority of his jobs lasted only for a day. The Court of Appeal
held that he was self-employed and not employed by the companies under individual contracts of

service.

With specific reference to the account(s) provided by Mr. Orville Kerr on diverse days to the
NCC October 26, 2015, in which he stated that he was a part-time employee at Seal Investments
Co. Ltd., Mr. Kerr made a contrasting admission to the OCG during a hearing convened on

November 24, 2015, as follows:

“CHAIRMAN: Are you presently employed,

sir?

A: How do I put this? I am a

carpenter. Self-employed.

CHAIRMAN: Now sir, have you ever been
employed to Seal Investments

Company Limited or

27 .

Ibid
%8 Argent v Minister of Social Security [1968] 3 All ER 208
»[1994] IRLR 171
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otherwise known as Seal
Construction Company

Limited, sir?
A: Before 2013, December.

CHAIRMAN: Now  sir, before 2013,
December, what happened
after 2013, December, sir.

A: 1 resigned the job 2013
December.
CHAIRMAN: And did you have any

engagement with Seal

Construction  after 2013

December, when you
resigned?
A: I think they called me on

three occasions.

CHAIRMAN: The three occasions that

they called you, vou ended

up doing jobs for them?

A: One day each time. »30

(OCG Emphasis)

In applying the common law test of mutual obligations to determine the employment status of

Mr. Orville Kerr at the date of the July 29, 2015 application by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. for re-

*® Transcript of hearing held on November 24, 2015 involving Mr. Orville Kerr dated. Pages 1-2.
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registration, one must examine the relationship between both parties and conclude whether there
exists an obligation on the employer to provide work and on the employee to execute same.
Therefore, the question of key importance becomes, was Seal Investments Co. Ltd. obligated to

provide work for Mr. Kerr and was he obligated to work for the company?

Based on the accounts provided by both Mr. Orville Kerr and Mr. Robert Thomas,
Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd. during the course of OCG hearings, there was no
mutual obligation as Mr. Kerr could refuse to work if he so desired and he was only

provided work by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. as the company deemed necessary.

Further, it is the OCG’s opinion that the employment status of Mr. Kerr is that of an independent
contractor and not a part-time employee. Mr. Kerr advised the OCG that he is self-employed and
is a carpenter by profession. When utilising the test of factors indicating employment status, one
has to consider the particular circumstances at hand in order to determine a person’s employment
status. In the instant regard, factors such as the duration of Mr. Kerr’s involvement with the
company and the manner in which he was paid should be considered. Mr. Kerr’s recent jobs with
Seal Investments Co. Ltd. involve the performance of tasks which only last for a single day on
three separate occasions, after which he was paid. In applying the decision in Argent v Minister
of Social Security’’, Mr. Kerr can be deemed an independent contractor as he was employed on a

casual or short term basis and he retained the right to be employed elsewhere.

Apprehension of Fear

During the course of the application verification process, Mr. Kerr indicated to the NCC that he
did not want Seal Investments Co. Ltd. to be made aware of his admission to the NCC of not
being an employee of their company. Mr. Orville Kerr disclosed the following, inter alia, to the

OCG:

“MR. DIRK HARRISON: Do you recall

indicating  to  the

*1[1968] 3 All ER 208
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MR. ORVILLE KERR:

MR. DIRK HARRISON:

person, the caller,

that you are afraid

and you did not wish

the owners to know

that you are here

saying that you don’t

work with them?

I don’t think I

remember that part,

saying that.

But, I am saying to
you that’s what the
officer has indicated
was one of your
concerns. You did not
wish it to  be
communicated and for
the owners to hear
back that you, on
being called, say you
don’t work for them
anymore and I quote,
“For over a year

i3]

now.
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MR. ORVILLE KERR:

However, on November 24, 2015, Mr. Kerr, in the presence of his attorney, made an entirely

different statement in another hearing convened by the OCG when he stated, inter alia, as

follows:

“CHAIRMAN:

CHAIRMAN:

I don’t remember that
one.”’ (OCG
Emphasis)

...Did you indicate to the

caller from the National

Contracts Commission that

you didn’t want the Seal

Construction __persons __to

know that you had said you

no longer work with them?

Yes, sir.

...Had you indicated, in my

words or in any other words,

that the reason is that you

are afraid of the sort of

persons that are associated

* Transcript of judicial hearing held on October 26, 2015 involving Mr. Orville Kerr. Page 15.

with Seal Construction and

that’s why you wanted the

NCC person not to repeat

that you no longer work with

them.
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A: I think I recall I said I would
prefer if the NCC office

investigate that for
themselves.

CHAIRMAN: But in fact you have some
concerns? That’s the

general way of saying it.

A: Yes, sir, because when I left

they still owed me money

and they didn’t pay me and

still _sending my name up

here.”** (OCG Emphasis)

Further concerns were expressed by Mr. Orville Kerr during the hearing which was convened on
November 24, 2015 in the presence of his attorney. These concerns arose in respect of Mr.
Thomas’ assertion, during the course of a hearing held on October 2, 2015, that “...Gary [Orville
Kerr] is supposed to start working specifically on a project in Green Pond starting this

34
month...”

The stated assertion was formally put to Mr. Kerr and to the contrary, Mr. Kerr,
during the course of a hearing which was held on November 24, 2015, disclosed to the OCG that
he was not aware that he was being engaged for a project in Green Pond which was
scheduled to commence in October 2015. Mr. Kerr further indicated that he did not start any

form of work in this regard and disclosed, inter alia, the following:

“CHAIRMAN: ..Mr. Thomas when being

asked questions said:

* Transcript of judicial hearing held on November 24, 2015 involving Mr. Orville Kerr. Pages 6-7.
** Transcript of hearing held on October 2, 2015 involving Mr. Robert Thomas. Page 7.
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CHAIRMAN:

A:

“What Gary does is

temporary for now. He will

come into, like the Riviera

project or _any other project

on_call and work. Gary is

supposed to start working

specifically on a project in

Green Pond starting this

month, so I would say, ves.”

So vou were given a specific

time to work on the Green

Pond project?

Not to  anymore  [sic]

knowledge.

And you have not started on

any work with them at all?

o 5935
No, sir.

At this juncture, the OCG highlights the following clause of the document entitled “NATIONAL

CONTRACTS COMMISSION

REGISTRATTION

OF WORKS CONTRACTORS

GRADES 1-4 GENERAL INFORMATION™:

“15. IF THE INFORMATION PROVIDED BY

THE

APPLICANT  ON WHICH

EVALUATION _AND AWARD(S) WERE

BASED IS FOUND TO BE ERRONEOQUS

THEN THE CONTRACTOR(S) MAY

» Transcript of hearing held on November 24, 2015 involving Mr. Orville Kerr. Page 13.

National Contracts Commission Office of the Contractor General

Page 65 of 103

January 2017



NOT _BE __REGISTERED, OR _IF
ALREADY REGISTERED, THE
REGISTRATION WILL BE
REVOKED...” (OCG Emphasis)

The OCG notes that Mr. Chescot Brownie, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd., in his supporting
Affidavit®® which was affixed to the July 29, 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC,
declared that, to the best of his knowledge, information and belief, the information contained in
the referenced application was “...true and correct”. He further declared that he understood that
“...if the information provided, is found to be erroneous, then the firm may not be registered and

if already registered, the registration maybe revoked.”

Further, Mr. Brownie, during the course of a hearing held on October 2, 2015, advised the OCG

of Mr. Orville Kerr’s employment status, as indicated below:

“MR. DIRK HARRISON: ...Mr. Kerr has
indicated when asked
by us at August 13 of
this year, he has said
he no longer works
with the company and
he says he has not
worked with the
company for over a

year.

MR. CHESCOTT BROWNIE: I don’t have a hands
on with the workers

as such, but if I can

** Made pursuant to the Voluntary Declarations Act.
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recall, he is a worker,

that does a lot of

work for us. We call

him from time to

time, he is actually

employed not full-

time employed to the

company...he comes

in and out to do

things whenever

there is something to

be done, like a major

project or so...

We wouldn 't lie
about these person
are not significant for
us to get back our
Grade 1, so, why then
would we want to lie
about these two
workers when we
have so many
different workers or
SUpervisors on to our
contracts to show

that...
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Almost ten years we
have been a Grade 1,
so simple things like
this shouldn’t be
worthy for us to be
sitting here, the last
time we did it they
were on it, you

know 9937

(OCG Emphasis)

At this juncture, the OCG places emphasis on Section 29 of the Contractor-General Act, which

provides, inter alia, the following:

“Every person who—

(a)

willfully makes any false statement to

()

mislead or misleads or attempts to mislead

a Contractor-General or any other person

in the execution of his functions under this

dct; or
without lawful justification or excuse —

(i) obstructs, hinders or resists a
Contractor-General or any other
person in the execution of his

functions under this Act; or

*” Transcript of hearing held on October 2, 2015 involving Mr. Chescot Brownie. Pages 61-67.
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(ii)  fails to comply with any lawful
requirement of a Contractor-General
or any other person under this Act;

or

(c) deals with documents, information or things
mentioned in section 24 (1) in a manner
inconsistent with his duty under that

subsection,

shall be guilty of an offence and shall be liable on

summary conviction before a Resident Magistrate

to a fine not exceeding five thousand dollars or to

imprisonment for a term not exceeding twelve

months or to both such fine and imprisonment.”

Based on the foregoing provisions, the OCG notes that Mr. Robert Thomas and Mr. Chescot

Brownie, Directors of Seal Investments Co. Ltd., breached Section 29 of the Contractor General

Act as they made false statements to the Contractor General during the course of hearings, as it

regards the employment status of Mr. Orville Kerr.
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Anomalies, Irregularities and Inconsistencies in Representations made to the OCG

Concerning the 2015 Application for Re-Registration with the NCC by Seal Investments
Co. Ltd.

It is the OCG’s observation that there were several irregularities in the representations made to
the NCC and the OCG by employees and Directors of Seal Investments Co. Ltd. concerning the

company’s 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC.

Anomalies Regarding the Employment Status and Qualifications of Farrel Drummond

In relation to the employment status and qualifications of Mr. Farrel Drummond, the OCG noted
several inconsistencies. Firstly, Mr. Farrel Drummond advised the NCC that he was not
employed to Seal Investments Co. Ltd. “...as he is old and that he goes there on occasions

¥ However, during the course of the hearing held on October 16,

because his friends are there
2015, Mr. Drummond advised the OCG that he is in fact employed to Seal Investments Co. Ltd.
Mr. Drummond stated that when he received the telephone call from the NCC, he was unsure of

the identity of the caller and that he believed he was being targeted by a scammer.

In support of the representation that Mr. Drummond was in fact employed to Seal Investments
Co. Ltd., Mr. Thomas provided the OCG with a letter dated October 6, 2015. The letter stated
that:

“Mr. Farrel Drummond has been employed to Seal
Construction Limited as a foreman supervisor since
1994... He has worked on projects such as: Sterling
Manor (Reading, St. James), Sinclair Townhouse
Complex (Coral Gardens — St. James), Counter
Point Complex (Ironshore — St. James), The Riviera

(Bogue, St. James) and other residential projects to

*® Document entitled “Review of National Contracts Commission (NCC) Contractor Registration”, prepared by
the Technical Services Department, and dated August 7, 2015. Page 6.
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present date. Mr. Drummond is paid twenty five
thousand dollars ($25,000) fortnightly.”

Of note, Mr. Drummond’s signature was affixed to the letter confirming the accuracy of the

information which had been detailed.

Attached to the referenced letter was an extract from a cheque delivery book which was prepared

by Seal Investments Co. Ltd., and which reflected the dates of cheques, the dates on which they

were collected, as well the amounts which were made payable®. The following was prepared by

the OCG based on the information observed from the extract of the cheque delivery book. Of

note, the extract spanned the period November 22, 2013 to September 25, 2015, and was

provided by Mr. Robert Thomas.*'

No. Cheque Number Date Represented Amount Made
Payable

1 00173 | November 22,2013 $35,000.00
2 00207 December 6, 2013 $20,000.00
3 00275 December 6, 2013 $50,000.00
4 00302 January 3, 2014 $35,000.00
5 00372 January 17, 2014 $35,000.00
6 200027 January 31, 2014 $35,000.00
7 200100 February 14, 2014 $35,000.00
8 234 March 14, 2014 $35,000.00
9 000832 March 31, 2014 $35,000.00
10 358 April 11,2014 $35,000.00
11 Paid by cash May 9, 2014 $35,000.00
12 Paid by cash May 21, 2014 $35,000.00
13 Paid by cash June 13,2014 $15,000.00
14 Paid by cash June 24, 2014 $17,000.00
15 200388 July 4, 2014 $20,000.00

% Letter dated October 6, 2015 which was addressed to the OCG and signed by Mr. Robert Thomas and Mr. Farrel

Drummond.

“ In his response to the OCG dated August 4, 2016, Mr. Robert Thomas, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd.,
indicated that “the dates indicated on the referenced extract generally reflect the date of the cheques and also
generally reflect the dates on which the cheques were collected by the payees.”

! Attached to Response dated October 8, 2015, which was addressed to the OCG and signed by Mr. Nigel Jones,

Attorney-at-law, Nigel Jones & Co., attorney then acting on behalf of Mr. Robert Thomas.
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16 200511 July 8, 2014 $25,000.00
17 Paid by cash August 4, 2014 $25,000.00
18 Paid by cash August 15, 2014 $15,000.00
19 Paid by cash August 28, 2014 $10,000.00
20 Paid by cash August 29, 2014 $3,000.00
21 Paid by cash | September 12, 2014 $20,000.00
22 Paid by cash | September 26, 2014 $25,000.00
23 Paid by cash October 18, 2014 $25,000.00
24 | Payment method not October 26, 2014 $10,000.00
indicated
25 Paid by cash October 30, 2014 $18,000.00
26 Paid by cash November 7, 2014 $20,000.00
27 Paid by cash November 21, 2014 $20,000.00
28 Paid by cash December 5, 2014 $10,000.00
29 | Payment method not December 24, 2014 $10,000.00
indicated

30 Paid by cash February 2015 $30,000.00
31 22361 February 6, 2015 $35,000.00
32 Paid by cash March 13, 2015 $30,000.00
33 200536 March 27, 2015 $35,000.00
34 200557 April 20, 2015 $35,000.00
35 200587 May 1, 2015 $20,000.00
36 Paid by cash August 31, 2015 $25,000.00
37 Paid by cash | September 25, 2015 $25,000.00
38 200170 Undated $40,600.00

TOTAL $983,600.00

Additionally, copies of payroll summaries were attached to Mr. Thomas’ response. The

following was indicated:

Date Payee Name Project Name Invoice Amount

May 13,2015 | Farrel Drummond Name illegible $35,000.00

August 19, 2015 Farrel Drummond Riviera $35,000.00

September 23, |  Farrel Drummond Riviera $25,000.00
2015

TOTAL $95,000.00

*? There is also an email correspondence dated February 5, 2015 from Ms. Lisa Gordon, Rheshan Capital
Management Limited, to ryan.parkes@gk.co.com which details a payroll summary corresponding with this

information.
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mailto:ryan.parkes@gk.co.com

The foregoing information supports the responses provided by Mr. Drummond and Mr. Thomas
in the OCG’s hearings, that is, the records support the finding that Mr. Drummond is a full-time

employee at Seal Investments Co. Ltd. who receives a salary fortnightly.

On a review of an extract of the cheque delivery book which was provided by Mr. Robert
Thomas, the OCG notes that varying signatures were affixed to the document to represent that of

Mr. Farrel Drummond.

As it regards the submission of a résumé for Mr. Farrel Drummond by Seal Investments Co. Ltd.
in its 2015 application for re-registration, Mr. Drummond advised the OCG that he did not recall
drafting such a document or giving instructions to anyone to draft same on his behalf. Further,
upon being presented with details of a certain project that he worked on, Mr. Drummond advised
the OCG that he completed same in 2015. However, as a point of fact, the project which was
described to Mr. Drummond, by the OCG, was completed in 2012, based on the information

which was outlined in his résumé which bore the date 2012.

Mr. Robert Thomas, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd., advised the NCC that the listed
members of staff were aware that their names were being submitted on the company’s July 29,
2015 application for re-registration with the NCC. In contrast, Mr. Drummond and Mr. Kerr
stated during their respective appearances before the Contractor General on October 16 and 26,

2015, that they were not aware that their names were submitted on the referenced application.

Anomalies Regarding the Employment Status of Orville Kerr

The OCG observed several irregularities in respect of the employment status of Mr. Orville Kerr
with Seal Investments Co. Ltd. Firstly, during the hearing convened by the OCG on October 2,
2015, Mr. Robert Thomas, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd. indicated to the OCG that Mr.
Orville Kerr was employed on a full-time basis at the company until August 2014. However, Mr.

Kerr advised the OCG that he was employed full-time at the company until December 2013.
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In a letter prepared and signed by Mr. Robert Thomas, addressed to the OCG and dated October
6, 2015, Mr. Thomas refers to the employment status of Mr. Kerr. He indicated that “Mr. Kerr
was employed without a written contract on a full time basis up to August 2014. Since that date
however, he has been engaged on an ‘as needed’ basis to perform functions...Mr. Kerr has been
paid cash on all works done, which ranges per day from three thousand dollars to six thousand
dollars (33000-86000) depending on the nature of work. Based on the above we have not

requested an updated resume for Mr. Kerr and therefore cannot provide one as requested.”

It must be noted that Seal Investments Co. Ltd. was required to provide updated résumés for all
support staff listed in its July 29, 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC in accordance
with the document entitled “NATIONAL CONTRACTS COMMISSION (NCC) WORKS
CONTRACTORS _REGISTRATION __ (GRADES 1-4) APPLICATION ___REVISED
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURES”. Further, in a document prepared

by the Technical Services Division, entitled “Review of National Contracts Commission
(NCC) Works 1-4 Contractor Application” and dated September 2, 2015, the following, inter

alia, is indicated:

“For the record, Mr. Robert Thomas, one of the
Directors of Seal Investment Company Limited
was the person who submitted the Application on

the Company’s behalf. Mr. Thomas prior to_the

submission and acceptance of the Application had

made at least three (3) previous visits to the Office

in _an _attempt to submit the Company’s

Application; the Application was not accepted on

those occasions as the Application was incomplete.

During those visits to the NCC Mr. Thomas was

advised to update the resumes of the respective

* Letter dated October 6, 2015 which was addressed to the OCG and signed by Mr. Robert Thomas.
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staff members represented on the Application

Form.”* (OCG Emphasis)

Further, it should be noted that Mr. Kenneth Livingston, Chief Financial Officer, Seal
Investments Co. Ltd., was aware that updated résumés were required for members of staff who
were represented on an application to the NCC. The OCG is of the view that the résumés of Mr.
Drummond and Mr. Kerr which supported the company’s 2015 application for re-registration
were not updated. This is premised on the fact that both the résumés of Mr. Drummond and Mr.
Kerr bore 2012 dates notwithstanding having been submitted and stamped by the NCC on July
29, 2015. Of note, the résumés of Mr. Drummond and Mr. Kerr which bore 2012 dates are
identical copies of those which were submitted with the applications for re-registration with the

NCC by Seal Investments Co. Ltd. on August 27, 2012 and September 6, 2013.

Attached to Mr. Thomas’ letter of October 8, 2015, were copies of cheques which were made

payable to Mr. Orville Kerr as follows:

Cheque Date of Cheque Amount Made | Bank of Encashment
Number Payable

00177 | November 22, 2013 $70,000.00 First Global Bank

00211 December 6, 2013 $70,000.00 First Global Bank

000829 March 4, 2014 $140,000.00 | Bank of Nova Scotia
TOTAL $280,000.00

Also affixed to the referenced response was an extract from a cheque delivery book, prepared by
Seal Investments Co. Ltd., which reflects the names of persons collecting cheques, the cheque
number, and the amounts which were made payable. The cheque delivery book, which spanned
the period November 22, 2013 to September 25, 2015, displayed the following information in

relation to Mr. Kerr:

* Document entitled “Review of National Contracts Commission (NCC) Contractor Registration”, prepared by
the Technical Services Department, and dated September 2, 2015. Pages 2-3.
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Date Represented Amount Made Payable
November 22, 2013 $70,000.00
December 6, 2013 $70,000.00
TOTAL $140,000.00

Notwithstanding the absence of documentary evidence, in the form of cheque payments for

employment to Mr. Orville Kerr after March 4, 2014, Mr. Kerr advised the OCG that he is a part-

time employee at Seal Investments Co. Ltd. and is employed on a needs basis.

Of note, the cheque dated March 4, 2014 made payable to Mr. Kerr is not reflected in the extract

of the cheque delivery book which was presented to the OCG.
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CONCLUSIONS

Based upon the sworn responses provided by employees and directors of Seal Investments Co.
Ltd. as well as documentary evidence submitted to the OCG during the course of hearings, the

OCQG has arrived at the following considered conclusions:
1. Mr. Farrel Drummond is a full-time employee of Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

2. The OCG accepts that during the course of the verification process, a representative of
the NCC had identified himself to Mr. Farrel Drummond. The OCG concludes that Mr.
Drummond was being disingenuous in his statement to the OCG that he was of the

opinion that the caller was a ‘scammer’.

3. Mr. Orville Kerr is an independent contractor/self-employed and at the time of the
company’s July 29, 2015 application to the NCC for re-registration, he was not an

employee of Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

The OCG accepts the representations which were made to the NCC by Mr. Kerr

wherein he advised that he was no longer employed to Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

and that the last time communication was made with the company regarding a

project was in 2014.

The subsequent indication by Mr. Robert Thomas that Mr. Kerr was employed on a needs
basis and was employed in that capacity as at the date of the company’s July 29, 2015
application for re-registration with the NCC, is rejected. Mr. Thomas has failed to
provide evidence to substantiate that Mr. Kerr was employed and was being paid for
services rendered during this period. As a point of fact, Mr. Thomas and by extension,
Seal Investments Co. Ltd., has only provided proof of payment to Mr. Kerr which ends
on March 4, 2014. This is further buttressed by the fact that Mr. Kerr has indicated that
he had some concerns regarding the Seal Investments Co. Ltd. as monies were owed to
him upon his resignation and the company still listed him as a member of staff in their

application for re-registration with the NCC. Given the compendium of facts, the OCG
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reiterates the view that Mr. Orville Kerr was not employed at the time of the

application.

4. The OCG concludes that Seal Investments Co. Ltd. submitted Mr. Orville Kerr’s name as
a member of its supervisory staff on its July 29, 2015 application to the NCC for re-

registration, without his permission or consent.

5. Mr. Chescot Brownie, by way of his Affidavit made pursuant to the Voluntary
Declarations Act, signed and caused to be submitted the July 29, 2015 application for re-
registration with the NCC.

6. Having regard to Clause 15 of the document entitled “NATIONAL CONTRACTS
COMMISSION REGISTRATION OF WORKS CONTRACTORS GRADES 14
GENERAL INFORMATION”, the OCG concludes that the information submitted by

Seal Investments Co. Ltd. in its 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC, as it

regards the employment status of Mr. Orville Kerr, is erroneous.

7. Having concluded that Mr. Orville Kerr was not a full-time or part-time employee at Seal
Investments Co. Ltd. at the time the company submitted its 2015 application for re-
registration with the NCC, the OCG further concludes that Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

mispresented information to the NCC in this regard.

8. The OCG concludes that a determination should be made by the relevant authority on
whether Seal Investments Co. Ltd. misrepresented information to the NCC 1n its July 29,
2015 application for re-registration. The OCG’s position is premised on the suspicion
which surrounds the authenticity of the 2012 Résumé of Mr. Farrel Drummond, given the
testimony of Mr. Drummond that he cannot recall whether he had instructed an agent to

draft the referenced document on his behalf.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The OCG accepts Mr. Orville Kerr’s account to the NCC in which he stated that he did
not want Seal Investments Co. Ltd. to be made aware of his admission of not being an

employee of their company.

Mr. Robert Thomas, Director, Seal Investments Co. Ltd., misled the NCC when he
asserted that Mr. Orville Kerr and Mr. Farrel Drummond were aware that they were listed
as members of the company’s supervisory staff in the referenced 2015 application for re-
registration. Messrs. Drummond and Kerr have both advised the OCG on more than one
occasion that they were not aware that their names were being submitted to the NCC in

this manner, albeit being employed to Seal Investments Co. Ltd.

The OCG concludes that the submission of the résumés of two employees of Seal
Investments Co. Ltd., namely Messrs. Farrel Drummond and Mr. Orville Kerr, were

submitted to the NCC without their knowledge.

The OCG has seen no evidence to suggest that the process utilized by the NCC in
reviewing the July 29, 2015 application which was submitted by Seal Investments Co.

Ltd. for re-registration was less than comprehensive, fair and impartial.

Based on the details of a cheque delivery book which spanned the period November 22,
2013 to September 25, 2015, thirty-eight (38) payments were made to Mr. Farrel
Drummond totalling $983,600.00.

Based on the details of the referenced cheque delivery book, two (2) payments were
made to Mr. Orville Kerr for the period November 22, 2013 and December 6, 2013 and
which totaled $140,000.00.

Two (2) cheques, dated November 22, 2013 and March 4, 2014, were made payable to
Mr. Orville Kerr and which totaled $280,000.00.
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16. The OCG has seen no evidence which refers to details of cheque payments for Mr.
Orville Kerr for the period April 2014 to present™. In point of fact, the last date on which
payment has been evidenced by the OCG for Mr. Orville Kerr is March 4, 2014.

* As at the date of the OCG’s enquiry.
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REFERRALS

The OCG, in the conduct of its Investigation, is guided by Section 21 of the Contractor General

Act. Section 21 provides as follows:

“If a Contractor-General finds, during the course

of his investigations or on the conclusion thereof

that there is evidence of a breach of duty or

misconduct or criminal offence on the part of an

officer or member of a public body, he shall refer

the matter to the person or persons competent to

take such disciplinary or other proceeding as may

be appropriate against that officer or member and

in_all such cases shall lay a special report before

Parliament.”*° (OCG Emphasis)

1. In keeping with the findings and conclusions cited herein, the Contractor General refers
Messrs. Robert Thomas and Chescot Brownie, Directors, Seal Investments Co. Ltd., to
the Commissioner of Police and refers a copy of its Special Report of Investigation for
further investigation and a determination to be made as to whether the company,

misrepresented information to the NCC in its 2015 application for re-registration.

This Referral is being made on the basis of the submission of erroneous information by

Seal Investments Co. Ltd. for its 2015 NCC Application for re-registration.

2. The Contractor General refers Messrs. Robert Thomas and Chescot Brownie to the
Director of Public Prosecutions for a determination to be made as to whether they

willfully made a false statement to the Contractor General as it regards the employment

*® The Contractor General Act, Section 21.
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status of Mr. Orville Kerr, and as such have breached Section 29 of the Contractor

General Act.

The OCG is referring a copy of its Special Report of Investigation to Director of Public

Prosecutions, having particular regard to the stated offence.

3. The Contractor General also refers Mr. Chescot Brownie, Director, Seal Investments Co.
Ltd., to the Commissioner of Police for further investigation, on the grounds that the
Affidavit under the Voluntary Declarations Act, was signed by him. The Affidavit
attested to the truthfulness and correctness of the information provided within the subject
2015 application for re-registration with the NCC. In furtherance of the Findings and
Conclusions herein, it has been revealed that information submitted by Seal Investments

Co. Ltd. in its 2015 NCC application for re-registration was considered to be erroneous.

4. In furtherance of the Findings and Conclusions, the OCG refers same to the NCC for
consideration, as it regards effecting Clause 15 of the “NATIONAL CONTRACTS
COMMISSION REGISTRATION OF WORKS CONTRACTORS GRADES 1-4
GENERAL INFORMATION”, and consequent upon same, consider our

recommendation to delay its due consideration of the application for re-registration of the
entity, Seal Investments Co. Ltd., for such time as the matters which are contained in this
said Report as referred to the Commissioner of Police and the Director of Public

Prosecutions have been determined.

This Referral is being made on the basis of the submission of erroneous information by

Seal Investments Co. Ltd. for its 2015 application for re-registration with the NCC.
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RECOMMENDATIONS

Section 20 (1) of the Contractor-General Act mandates that “after conducting an investigation

under this Act, a Contractor-General shall, in writing, inform the principal officer of the public
body concerned and the Minister having responsibility therefor of the result of that investigation
and make such recommendations as he considers necessary in respect of the matter which was

investigated.” (OCG’s Emphasis)

The OCG hereby recommends that Contractors seeking to register with the NCC must carry out
the necessary due diligence to verify information and ensure the authentication of documentation
that support their applications for the NCC’s consideration and registration. The OCG considers
this recommendation to be absolutely important as there is no latitude for Contractors who

provide false information or misrepresent information on their Application Forms.

Further, the OCG wishes to remind contractors of Section 1.3.2 , Volume 2 of the Government of

Jamaica Handbook of Public Sector Procurement Procedures, which provides information

pertaining to following:

“DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
INELIGIBILITY

A contractor may be disqualified and/or stricken
from the NCC Register of Public Sector Contractors
without liability to GoJ, if it is found at any time,
that the information submitted concerning his/her
qualifications was deliberately falsified. Procuring
Entities should, therefore, report any such findings
to the NCC promptly, along with any evidence
substantiating the falsification. Contractors may

also be disqualified, suspended, or stricken from the
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NCC Register without liability to GoJ, for reasons

’

of poor performance.’

2. The OCG recommends that provisions be inserted in the NCC Application Form to specify

explicitly, the employment status of staff members at the date of submission of applications

for registration with the NCC, namely, whether the named members of staff are full-time

employees, part-time employees, independent contractors or are employed on a needs basis.

3. The OCG recommends that the NCC implements a telephonic recording system that will allow
maximum quality control when its staff interacts with contractors and serves as a tangible record
of the discourse and communication held between the NCC and contracting entities in respect of

the verification process.

4. The OCG recommends that the NCC be more vigilant in the processing of documents for the

registration of contractors such as the review of résumés or accreditation documentation.
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APPENDICES
Appendix 1

SION

REGISTER. O PURLIC SECTOR WORKS CONTRACTORS
GRADES 1-4

APPLICATION FORM

MName of Compiny: mm_m.ﬁ. xkqmﬁu\&um‘&.ﬂ & ol

HATION AL CONTRALTE CORMMISS 0N Type nf Application: {please indicarc)

TiE CONTRACTS SRORETARIAL | | Mew
OFFICE OF THE COY TRACTOR-GENERAL -rA\

LTI O0R, FIGT BUILDMNG noual Registration
L& OFTORN ROAT KIMNGE TN 5 F\o perade

Telephote B23-BSA0MMEMMAA0
Fun: SA5-T3 350208 104

MW e bsite: W

Additional Category {ies)

0

N Begistralivn Zs.mu. & ]

= ISYG-

FLLASE INIICATE YETHAR OF WECEIYTNG CRRTIFICATE UF BLGISTRALTION BY NCKING THE APPROPRIATE BOX:[ | nOLD |

| *LAIL
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Application for Inclusion on the COYERNMENT OF JAMAICA Register of Pablic Sector Warks Contraciors
Grades | =4

idppiicanos mus be complaied 1o Mack ink wring bleck fanerng o e

1 What ks the Registered NMame of ihe Firm?

Szl Taves mens Co ﬁ.ﬁu Q&\m&}ﬁm C vt 7 =

What is the legal structure of the Firm®:  Sole Proprietorship | | Parfnershap | | Limited Liablity Company | |

| 1 Ceqy of Cerificate of Incarparation attached
Wheat is the Registered Busingss Address of the Firm?
Street Address S\ xS Fe s Prvenand h‘ﬁjtwu__ﬁ.._
Parish 57 5 o =0 ) \

Valling Address [hoes the Firm Have o Branch OMice”

Address _PW P.mﬂu.c_.m Address .j__‘?

Parish Frarish

Does the firm have? [ Warehouse -S.m_,._ae. | | Warkshop (please mdmate)

Please State (riher Methads of Contacting the Firm

n..:..__"un_"?“ﬁ_=u__¥._=__=_.p_.._._m____..n_n_m_Bn._:EE? ﬂﬁ__‘wmlllﬁ ?ﬂl&.
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How many years has the Firm been aperating a5 a comtracior?  [Weighted 10% ol Evaluston)
.*

Under its present name i M..MFruu.

What was the Date of Registration?  YearMoniDuy |9 S (D% O

Under amy other name? .wnﬁnn. Flease siate the olber name: -.mu .q..f

Who are the Owners/Principals?: 1] ¢ FESac 0 | BErowmsss, nIIH...NO.m.m._.r.q \HNW._..}_.___M_

3) 4

5) )

Please State the DirectorsManagers of the Firm:
1} Mame m..u.._..ﬂm.w ey ?Ehﬂuﬂ. Fostian E_I.ﬂu.lﬂl.. il ey,

2 Name Bafamd 7 Hevans,  Posion = Y=
3y Mame et H Lovenesipn:  Posiion_ 6 O

) Name: TFastion:
5) Mame: Position:
MATIONAL CONTRACTS COMMISSEON ~ Contracior Applicabion Form CR - 012015 SECTION 1 Page 20l 17

January 2017

Office of the Contractor General

National Contracts Commission

of 103

Page 87



=

Plense indicate the Category and Grade for which registration ks sought by inserfing the requested grade (1, 1, 3, 4) in the
space provided for each calegery.
(Fow fimrifer informartion on Grodes and Cmiegories see Apperdix)
W “ Cafepories o Grade | Ne. | Categories o | Grade
_ Blasting 4 | Mechanical Woarks
2 m Bridie Construdion 1@ m Bledical :_.m_._ [HTRERE
1 _ Haiildirg Constnaction 20 m Painting & Decontive Finishes
! _ tuilding Maimtenanie 2 Filing
5 Civil Egineering 12 Fipe Laymg
[ Dinilling ] 23 Fuopd Mamienance Wirks
7 Elecincal Warks 70 | Rasd Surlacing - Asphaltic Concrete Waorks
% | Elevator, Excalator & Mavirg Wallowans 25 | Raad Surfacing - Double Surfsce Dressing Waorks
(% Fencing 26 | Road Surfacing - Micro Surfacirg Works
10 Cienersl Road Waorks 27 Foofing
KT Heating, ¥enblahon, Air Corditoning & Refigeration 24 Sandblasting
[Tz m Indusirial Maintzrarce 20 Spcunity Syslems
[13 _ Information Techralogy Syatems - il | »gnage
4 [ Instrumeniation L] _ Siedl Eroction
IE _ Interior Corstruction Works } 32 | Sted Fabrication
[16 | Landscaping 31 | Gystem Bu g
7 _ Manine Engineering . 3| Tank Erectian
HATIONAL CONTRACTS COMMIZON — Oeniractor Applicaton Fors CR - 01201%  SECTIOR | Fage 10707
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*&, e I elev | i egulpment availnhle to the Firm: | Th page .__.."”. he copied as reguised)
&, IFlease list the major ilems of relevant plant and equif

— T T % & e '] it he
If hsted eguipmerd oz Chamed 18 nol supported by o Detaibed Fixed Ass=t Schedule of the Awdied Financial Statements, o will n

CONSIOCU

Age | Owned L eased/ B e mted Condition
{eig'Fph

L 111 [tems

D Bl Tres Ferdmec SyETE A & 1
T Tagien Lo Tern ﬂw.nr E Rt . |
| B Pawndsailes ‘.;,u..wuu.ﬂllufa T

_. PPl TrodweiZow il N _
LY AePHaLT Drecen / Feedh Ben Afle Thns |

\m\v " Fuel Tewk ;) Btlo TRATE~ |

e i | Pase cowveyer B0 Afc TRl |

Y | Tee TAasse ETRaple 79 rofTaALe Bo

180 Ton P He NEPA TpnaTed

i
mﬁbi.pﬂ T =o0c.c bwen T Hammen *
VAT w#ﬁmﬁb LT S— &Msp

T Ses ABNCTIonA L Ean” AT
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.. Please Hst the major fiems of refevant plant and cquipment available fo the Flrm:

| This page may be copeed as required}

If listed equipment a3 Owned is nat supported by o Detailed Fixed Asset Schedube of the Audited Financial Statements, it will nog be

considered.
m Crwmed LeasedRented Candition
Noo | Tie Age i
L DRy Comnenrsl BACHr FamaT| O gz
: ,_-._Euwuﬁ.\n.. TCow P nATe BF _G_E.lu‘?
! P Houos
) _\..n T o u“nll.ll. 1 ﬂﬂﬂ. =L _
_u - .ﬂl - :m-_‘lu.u.ﬂ.... _
| Bor = |.m
B P vt I .
8 _
.”u : 2 — Mu._.-.. - ._
| S Y ricce— OF CHinass ©irs |
&
AT U T .
|
___,u HnnT Pente _
iz : M 4_.... n__. 1
13 Hé |.Eﬂ
14
15
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7. Financial Information (Weighted 30% of Evaluation)
71 Please State the Total Annual Volume of Construetion werk performed in the past five (3) years
Year Tatal Aniwal Volume
HFW 207 M
20l m_m._.b_ |
w0 A% M
201 feg M
2010 g A
72 Please Provide Audited Fimancial Reports for the Last Three (3) Years: Balance %heets, Profit and Loss Stalements, Cash
Flaw, Accountant’s/Anditor's Reporis eic. Plesse List below and Attach:
721 For Re-Registration, please provide the Last Year's Financial Statement Only
722 For Newly Incorporated Companies, please refer io page 12 of the Supplementary Registration Requirements for New Appl ICARis
Year Items
nif | Ll AR N
r A
AT A o
nl _{E S
NATIONAL CONTRACTS COMMISSHON - Contracior Application Form CF - 0172018 SECTION | Page 5 of 17

January 2017

Office of the Contractor General

National Contracts Commission

Page 94 of 103



ial instingions who provide (nancial services and who may be contacted o

mi name(s) of vour bankens) and oller lina
provede MelErences

a] Mame of Institution:

_.ﬁ_u—.”._w_..,....._ |I

_.w}_ﬁx Nindesa
AN

bl Adidress

¢} Comiact Persa Foaition

“ Name _.__. Hn_n.___:.__._:.- I — -

a} Mame of Iestitulsomn;

b} Address Tele phone

foaition____ — - -

¢} Contact Person

MATIONAL OONTRACTS COMMISSION — Contrachor Applicaion Fomes CR-01205 SECTHONI Page 6ol 17
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-~

v

STAFFING (Weighted 30% of Evaluation)  (Thuz page may be copied a8 reqiired o pravide infarmation for additienal staff members.)
83 Swpervisary (10% of evaluation)
Supervizory Stall includks
+  Ipdividusls with appropeinte experience i b coestnaction industry with respanaibility for on-site day-io-dzy activities
= At the time of Application, individusia who bave 2 formal working relationship wish the Contractor andfor Comgany in @ capacity such as
Consultanis, Pull-iime or Part-tme gl Individuals sy alss be profesionally and iectmically trined.

Mame of Imdivid ual; .__qE rlﬁuap%!th .u.nEui._n._._“::._.|D.+‘
Mumbsr of years in consinuction indusiry:

i Tech Sch., Cert., Dip,, Bac,, Ma., Mae) Year (xalified dAcerediting [mslibetion

EvPimcgnce” { -

! )

F
Inforsatian regarding experience in each category of work for which regismatmon @ requesied

ﬁm”:ﬁ”ﬂﬂﬁ. N ._M..”..m“u__._..ﬂ“”r " Position Held _”..___...:_ Diescription )
Bhg Conei” | Yy * DuPen~vibon  |AP7 § TOweat?
CrvIl Ewg " ! TPRevs T Duweliz,
)
_mMnﬁ.LEu if ]
RoaD Maca T 1

MATHHIAL CONTRACTS COMMISZI0N - Conlractor Application Form CR - 0172005 SECTHON |
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STAFFING (Weighted 30% of Evaluation)  (This page may be copied as requived fo provide informatian for addinamal suf members.)

3 Supervisory { 10% of evaluation)
Supervisary Stafl inchudes:
»  Inchividusls with approprisbe experienc in the construction indwsany with responsibility for an-site day-o-day setiviies

w it the time of Application, individuals whe kave a formal working relatisnship with the Costractor andior Company in 2 capacity such 4
ﬂ%_ Fyll-time or Pasj-tiree staff Tndividimls may also be peofessionslly and technically traned.

Eoy Tl Ler
; - ¥ewrs with Firm: _N

= _,nmﬁ.n.

Name ol | wal:
Murmber of yias i consnecion industry:
Educatioral Lovel Achieved {eg: High ! Tech Sch., Cert, Dijp, Bse, Ma., Msc)

Yoy Qualified  Accrediing Iesiniion

Con o Pz e b Ter | 200y | N TveT Hemel T
J §
Infiseration regarding experience in each category of work for which registratian is rquested:
Category Applied for Mo, of Years Experience in rhis - i
{List name of calegory) Category of Wark Pasition Held Project Discriplban
Blo. censeT 207 y2 oD T3 o
CoTazl  Ene 20T ye f
rove _.n.wﬁf_n 2" ya I
Elee] wWoapes 207 yo L
MATIONAL CONTRACTS COMMISSION - Contretor Agplation Form CR - 012015 SECTION Page 0 af 17
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RELATIONSHIFS

L

Flease siate ihe following Relationships with oiler Organizations:
A

If L Prireipal{z) andfos Director{s) of the Coenpany are Principals andior Dineclors and or Employees (inclading Publie
Sectar Employees) of other organizations which alse provede goods, warks, or services (o the cangiruction imdustry (except
those stated above) please siane:

{a) Manse of Individua] {b) Mame of Crganizalion (£} Passtian Held

f

— P

s

Ifthe Firm is 2 divisionisubsidiary of another company, pheise state the name of the parent comgény”

<
1§ the Firm is atherwise sssociated with or aitached to other arganzestions {Parent, m:E&E. _.pﬂ.ia._m_ Joint-Venture, ez}
which pravide goods, works, or services b fhe construction irsdusiry, please state e OFERNizI0O’ NAMGS aned resture of

Mame of Qrganiztion f_.ﬂ ?

Mature of Assoziation

o oW pa
i

Page |af 17
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AFFIDAVIT UNDER THE VOLUNTARY DECLARATIONS ACT

I THE MATTER of Part IT1A
of the Contractor-General Act.

AND IN THE MATTER af the
Matiomal Contracts Commission

L EJFEEC@ 7 £ gL duwon

] . beang duly sworn, make cath and sy
{IVarmnefiy af owier aF dirsonar]

& follows

1. Thatlam _-_}-nu: of age and 1 reside and have my rue place of abode_a -

of

Pk gukdrder of perden il abovel
Y

— et

red | 2m _ and [am didy
.'_[.I.rm'.nuup.lﬂrrlmlr T conimgciar-grEnar ar g
= =
b Imesimeny (0 L%
o . e .
authorised {0 make this affidavit on behalf oF ‘—‘r}h" 7 |a
(I & Crarracnos o e

2. That the facts st forth in the Natiopal Comtracts Commission Application for Inclasion on the
Regisier of Contractors for the Governmenst of Jamaica are based on my-‘ﬂcﬁﬁptrs-:nua; knorwiedpe or

infgrmition vhiained, from the files of ~ F
L. 5 - L I
o Aot L Fa BT . e to whach Liwe
e of Comtrasiar’ Gy B
N.C.C
have full access 4_—.;-,.-1_#];__0
— _ . JUL 29 2
3. That Dyl deckers ?!n Liwe beve carefully nead the forepoing applicagen form of
P -':-".."'.'F'I-"-&:.-_{?'r'.' e g . —
(vt 0f Cammiracror. e

and that 1o the hest of my'our informaton, knowledge, and beliof, the inforeation provided inthe said
form ig true and correct

4. 1 understand that the infoeenation prosided, if found 1o be erroneaus, then the: firm may not be
regisiered and if already registered, the regrstration maybe revoked

MWATION AL CONTEACTS COMMIZSION - Contractor Application Form CE - 0172015 SECTION 1 Page 14 of 17
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AN [ make this solemn declaration conscientioushy believing the same to be troe and by virtue of the
provisions of the Volantary Declarations Act.
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Thiz ferm muy be daplicaied ssaceded and rmane be compleied by rach Direcier asd Chvsar
Instructiess (Flense resd earefully):
1. This form may be duplicaced as needed and MUST be completed by EACH IMrector /Cwner (BB, O sheet per Direcior).
2, For Incorperated Comganing: A turrent “Form 23 cortified by fhe Compamies Office of Jamaics Mot sccompany this
dorumenl
3 Thl‘Ftﬂ!ﬂ"u:l.ulItntul—lrtﬂ.lmmulnprwmm-l.-d’mnhwimm-"hﬁcc.

et Clfetcer --*43{3"*‘“* | ——
St _twvamneny G L. "574 @ﬂ Gnutaarol G,

f'-'n'rr w'{hru,m;:l

LSolesnly deslang thal
Eeptipn §

a) 1o cumendy emploved 0 8 Govermmen esiny veg O Hnﬂ//

b} 0o caamently @ Thiessor on The boaed, or a semiber ol boaed commaies ol Covimesent entity Yes O HDU’.

ME [ paver auneer io sither (Reersion &) sv B be Seodew 2 i e, pinase sovplenre Secton T

Eecfion 1
2) | berwe received writen pemussion from the Offize ol the Services CommassicePermanmi Secretary 1o opente the estahbshmt
for uh.'-hIr:Iu.nJhm v the MCC i being soughi and the sod permission letter explicitly indicaies thai these excits so conllict ol
FHE

i Permiszon letter arached:  [0)(failure fo mitach s lesier will result in the son-aceepiunee of your applicatisa)

1 Marme of Gereetsinen] Apency

iii Dute of Empleyment:
wfmhm[ﬂhlduﬂinﬁmrﬁrqh lest five vears {All commi mmtﬁﬁ‘rl 'F-Ilrm:l_l
- VED
. JUL 29 2015

datien 4

Are you aﬁ?m oy aher company pevioushy or cumently regimered with the Mationsd Conracts Commesion?
Ifyes, please saie nure ol eompany (ies) and nanine olafTilation

s O
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Declaration Form
THAR OF PUBLIC SECTOR WORKS CONTRACTO! i

This farm ey e duplicated g needsd and s be compleied by seo Direcisr and Crevier
[nstructions (Fleaxe read carefullyl:

1. Thiur--ykdlphlrdnuﬁldﬂﬂhtummﬂhmmiﬁmrmﬂhhnrm

L. For Issorporated Chmganies; A curminl “Form 237 cortifed by the Compamies O of & ica Ml
desrumanl.

3 The *Ferm 23" must got be dated more thas two sonths prior o the date of sebmbsion of application 1o the MCC.

" e of Divector.
e _E:?f_r m&r@m; G' (= i ’Qm, Carr Trleec Py %’ ey o

Mamme of
Secion I
) lam carenty employed oo (ivernment enty Yes O H’nl?//
bl 1am curently & Dinector om the buard  or & membes of a boand commimes of o Gowerament eshity Yes O M:-El/

Ll

MR vour annver fo siher uestion a) or 8 in Seotion J 5 pes, pleane camplete Secnon 3
St 3

a) [ have seceivend wnnen permsacn S the OiTee of the Services CossmistonPersanen Secremnny o operale Sus cun| | ghesen)
fiod waldeh regismation with tee MIOC 5 beang sooghn mnd the said penrission bener explicidy indicates that there exists no confliet of
imerest O

1 Permission letter stached. O dfilure to sttach this leter will result in the non-acceptance of your agplication)
1 Marme ol Cereermame il A pency -

iii Dete of Employment.

% Poositiion (5] heldl withen Apency dang he Im);(::ui LAl ME{nnnrt-mmp WOLIST b smed |
] .ﬁr" __.l
e,

3

dEechiv f
ATE you afTi ATy e SOENPRTY [reviously of cummently Tegrs Bued with the Nato: TEACHS (CDmissinn
Yes O ITves, phefes SR reanms of com pary {ies) ond ramure of aSgeton :

: Tustice 3t -

Ihrecior Cuner ‘mgl".l"rm
e M= OF - T ot 2- 9~ F - AT

Plaasa nale that Ho sfankeg of s Formn MUST ba whis sssed in thep mawmce of i Justiics of the Pasce
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Appendix 2

BESUME 2012

MName: =arrel Orumirnoaad

oweotoe: [

befucating: Pualif[ed by Experlance. Atterded tachnicaf school; Mo fermal Tertiaey
Education;

¥

srrmmary of Experlanoa:

Chrar fifty [?,U:l years of evpedenia |1 burilding and infrastructure warks. Started In corstrection industry
worKing vatious tradas sach ag Mesat; Carpentee; Plumber at varows levels. Currently empliyed as a
foreman/zupervsar on road and hfrastischure projects. Attained the level of superyisor for cver forty

[441) years.
Campanies worked:

Ernest Ao construction Co. Ltd. ) b afoats, 58, Jarmes 10500857

Woallery & Hattners, Cottage Rel, Mohtego Bay 1565- 1382

Assunied vARDeS piojects on my own in bebween jons.

Sea| Construction Co. Ltd. 1594 ta Fresent: nesponginle for ganesal
projects reporting te Prajeck Menager. Construction of prelects from linfng out to cemplalion and hand
over i owners, Lnlag sk bulldings; eemplfance with speclfietdons: ensuring praject 18 done in timety
rmannass Beeparation of payrall; Checking geharal attendance of workers/trad ezmes. Resolwing on site
tisputes amang workinen; Lias g with architect andfor engineer &nd owners. Chacklng plans to ensura
cnmncl'olar-m: with bullding codes and sta ndards, n

Projecks worked on Intact Villa-Cortrack Sum S18M, (1985, Private residanca-Conslsting of three
Aaurs; Reinlomed concrete farndations: Rolnforeed corcrets tolumns and beamns: Rebnfareed soncrete
blocks; Refnforcad congrets reof staly and asphatt shingles; Electrical; Plumbling; Alr eondditioning: Paved

dilveway and stromawater drams.

Sterlirg Manar Town Houscs-Contract Swm $1400a {1898) Constructisn of Reinforoed concrets
framed butldings; Relnforced Conc. Foendations; Block walls; Cay tide roof; Efectrloal; Flumbing

Sewaraga to Inglyde bia dlgester and tile Seld, Paved parking; stermwater draing etc,
I
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